Planning Commission

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Date: 11/3/2025

Time: 7:00 p.m.
arry oF Location: Zoom.us/join — ID# 846 9472 6242 and
MENLO PARK City Council Chambers

751 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025
Members of the public can listen to the meeting and participate using the following methods.
How to participate in the meeting

e Access the live meeting, in-person, at the City Council Chambers
e Access the meeting real-time online at:
zoom.us/join — Meeting ID# 846 9472 6242
e Access the meeting real-time via telephone (listen only mode) at:
(669) 900-6833
Regular Meeting ID # 846 9472 6242
Press *9 to raise hand to speak
e Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time:
planning.commission@menlopark.gov*
Please include the agenda item number related to your comment.

*Written comments are accepted up to 1 hour before the meeting start time. Written messages are
provided to the Planning Commission at the appropriate time in their meeting.

Subject to change: The format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You may
check on the status of the meeting by visiting the city website menlopark.gov. The instructions for logging on
to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty accessing the webinar,
please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information
(menlopark.gov/agendas).

Regular Meeting

A. Call To Order

B. Roll Call
C. Reports and Announcements
D. Public Comment

Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the Commission on any subject not listed on the
agenda. Each speaker may address the Commission once under public comment for a limit of three
minutes. You are not required to provide your name or City of residence, but it is helpful. The

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov


https://zoom.us/join
https://zoom.us/join
http://menlopark.gov/
http://menlopark.gov/agendas

Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda
November 3, 2025

Page 2
Commission cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Commission cannot
respond to non-agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general
information.

E. Consent Calendar

E1.  Approval of minutes from the October 20, 2025 Planning Commission meeting (Attachment)
F. Public Hearing Items

F1. Use Permit/Anthony Ho/835 Arbor Rd.:
Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to construct exterior and interior
modifications and additions, including a basement and second story, to an existing nonconforming
single-story residence located on a substandard lot with regard to lot width and area in the R-1-S
(Single Family Suburban Residential) zoning district at 835 Arbor Road. The proposal includes use
permit requests for excavation within a side setback as part of the new basement and for the
proposed work to exceed 50 percent of the replacement value of the existing nonconforming
structure over a 12-month period. The proposal would exceed 50 percent of the existing floor area
and is considered equivalent to a new structure. Determine this action is categorically exempt
under CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, Class 1 exemption for existing facilities. (Staff report #25-
050-PC)

G. Regular Business

G1l. Review of draft 2025 Planning Commission meeting dates. Not a CEQA project. (Staff report #25-
051-PC).

H. Informational Items

H1. Future Planning Commission Meeting Schedule — The upcoming Planning Commission meetings
are listed here, for reference. No action will be taken on the meeting schedule, although individual
Commissioners may notify staff of planned absences.

e Regular Meeting: November 17, 2025
e Regular Meeting: December 1, 2025

l. Adjournment

At every regular meeting of the Planning Commission, in addition to the public comment period
where the public shall have the right to address the Planning Commission on any matters of public
interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right to directly address the
Planning Commission on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either
before or during the Planning Commission’s consideration of the item.

At every special meeting of the Planning Commission, members of the public have the right to

directly address the Planning Commission on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by
the chair, either before or during consideration of the item. For appeal hearings, appellant and

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda
November 3, 2025

Page 3

applicant shall each have 10 minutes for presentations.

If you challenge any of the items listed on this agenda in court, you may be limited to raising only
those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written
correspondence delivered to the City of Menlo Park at, or before, the public hearing.

Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the Planning Commission by any person in connection with an
agenda item is a public record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available by
request by emailing the city clerk at jaherren@menlopark.gov. Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary
aids or services in attending or participating in Planning Commission meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office
at 650-330-6620.

Agendas are posted in accordance with Cal. Gov. Code §54954.2(a) or §54956. Members of the public can
view electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the city website at menlopark.gov/agendas and can
receive email natifications of agenda postings by subscribing at menlopark.gov/subscribe. Agendas and staff
reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 10/29/2025)

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov


mailto:jaherren@menlopark.gov
https://menlopark.gov/agendas
https://menlopark.gov/susbscribe

CITY OF

Planning Commission

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Date: 10/20/2025
Time: 7:00 p.m.
Location: Zoom.us/join — ID# 846 9472 6242 and

MENLO PARK City Council Chambers

E1l.

E2.

751 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025
Call To Order
Chair Andrew Ehrich called the meeting to order at 7:50 p.m.
Roll Call

Present: Andrew Ehrich (Chair), Ross Silverstein (Vice Chair), Katie Behroozi, Linh Dan Do, Katie
Ferrick, Jennifer Schindler, Misha Silin

Staff: Matthew Ball, Assistant Planner; Edress Rangeen, Associate Engineer; Corinna Sandmeier,
Principal Planner

Reports and Announcements

Principal Planner Corinna Sandmeier said the City Council’s October 21, 2025 agenda included the
Building Code and revisions to the Below Market Rate Housing Guidelines.

Public Comment
Chair Ehrich opened public comment and closed it as no persons requested to speak.
Consent Calendar

Chair Ehrich opened public comment for the Consent Calendar and closed it as no persons
requested to speak.

Commissioner Do asked that the items be considered separately as she was absent for one
meeting.

Approval of minutes from the September 8, 2025 Planning Commission meeting (Attachment)

ACTION: Motion and second (Silverstein/Silin) to approve the item as presented; passes 6-0-1 with
Commissioner Do abstaining.

Approval of minutes from the September 29, 2025 Planning Commission meeting (Attachment)

ACTION: Motion and second (Schindler/Ferrick) to approve the item as presented; passes 7-0.

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov


https://zoom.us/join

Planning Commission Regular Meeting Draft Minutes
October 20, 2025
Page 2

F. Public Hearing Items

F1. Use Permit/Anthony Ho/835 Arbor Rd:
Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to construct exterior and interior
modifications and additions, including a basement and second-story, to an existing non-
conforming one-story residence on a substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width and area in
the R-1-S (Single Family Suburban Residential) zoning district. The proposed work would exceed
50 percent of the replacement value of the existing structure and the addition would exceed 50
percent of the existing floor area, both of which require use permit approval. Continue and re-
notice

Chair Ehrich opened the public hearing and closed it as no persons requested to speak.
ACTION: Motion and second (Behroozi/Do) to continue the item; passes 7-0.

F2. Public Right-of-Way Abandonment/Adjacent to 100 Terminal Ave.:
Consider and adopt a resolution determining that the abandonment of public right of way adjacent
to 100 Terminal Avenue is consistent with the General Plan and recommending the City Council
approve the requested abandonment; determine this action is categorically exempt under CEQA
Guidelines Section 15305, Class 5 exemption for minor alterations in land use limitations. (Staff
report #25-049-PC)
Edress Rangeen, Associate Engineer, said staff had no additions to the published staff report.
Chair Ehrich opened the public hearing and closed it as no persons requested to speak.
ACTION: Motion and second (Ferrick/Schindler) to adopt a resolution determining that the
abandonment of public right of way adjacent to 100 Terminal Avenue is consistent with the
General Plan and recommending the City Council approve as submitted; passes 7-0.
Commissioner Behroozi asked if staff might be able to provide an update to the Commission on
the potential connection between Chilco Street and the Belle Haven Community Campus. Planner
Sandmeier indicated that staff might be able to provide a future response on that.

G. Informational Iltems
G1. Future Planning Commission Meeting Schedule
e Regular Meeting: November 3, 2025

Planner Sandmeier said the 835 Arbor Road item that needed to be re-noticed would be on the
November 3 meeting and potentially the draft 2026 meeting calendar.

Chair Ehrich and Commissioner Behroozi each said they would be absent at that meeting

e Regular Meeting: November 17, 2025

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Draft Minutes
October 20, 2025
Page 3

H. Adjournment

Chair Erhich adjourned the meeting at 8:10 p.m.

Staff Liaison: Corinna Sandmeier, Principal Planner

Reporting Secretary: Brenda Bennett

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov



Community Development

STAFF REPORT

Planning Commission

Meeting Date: 11/3/2025
eIy OF Staff Report Number: 25-050-PC
MENLO PARK
Public Hearing: Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use

permit to construct exterior and interior
modifications and additions, including a basement
and second story, to an existing nonconforming
single-story residence located on a substandard lot
with regard to lot width and area in the R-1-S (Single
Family Suburban Residential) zoning district at 835
Arbor Road. The proposal includes use permit
requests for excavation within a side setback as
part of the new basement and for the proposed
work to exceed 50 percent of the replacement value
of the existing nonconforming structure over a 12-
month period. The proposal would exceed 50
percent of the existing floor area and is considered
eguivalent to a new structure; determine this action
is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines
Section 15301, Class 1 exemption for existing
facilities.

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a resolution approving a use permit to construct
exterior and interior modifications and additions, including a basement and second story, to an existing
nonconforming single-story residence on a substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width and area in the
R-1-S (Single Family Suburban Residential) zoning district, at 835 Arbor Road. The proposed work includes
use permit requests for excavation within a side setback as part of the new basement and for the proposed
work to exceed 50 percent of the replacement value of the existing structure over a 12-month period. The
proposal would exceed 50 percent of the existing floor area and is considered equivalent to a new structure.
The draft resolution, including the recommended actions and conditions of approval, is included as
Attachment A.

Policy Issues

Each use permit request is considered individually. The Planning Commission should consider whether the
required use permit findings can be made for the proposed project.

Background

Site location
The subject property is located south of downtown, close to Jack W. Lyle Park, St. Raymond Catholic
Church, and Santa Cruz Avenue. Adjacent residences to the right, left, and rear of the property are located

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov



Staff Report #: 25-050-PC
Page 2

in the R-1-S zoning district which consists of single- and two-story residences with a variety of architectural
styles such as ranch, traditional, and contemporary. Across Arbor Road, properties are located in the R-3
(Apartment) zoning district and developed with a mix of single-family, duplex, and apartment developments.
A location map is included as Attachment B.

Analysis

Project description

The lot is presently occupied by a 1,344-square-foot single-story, single-family residence with an attached,
two-car garage, originally built in 1951. The rectangular lot is considered substandard for the R-1-S zoning
district, with a lot area of 6,000 square feet where 10,000 square feet is the minimum, and a lot width of 60
feet where 80 feet is the minimum. The existing residence exhibits nonconformities with regard to setbacks.
The residence has a nonconforming right side (west) setback of approximately 4.8 feet, where a 10-foot
side setback is required. The residence also has a nonconforming rear (south) setback of 18.7 feet, where a
20-foot rear setback is required.

The applicant proposes a comprehensive exterior and interior remodel and additions to the single-story
residence while maintaining the existing nonconforming right side (west) and rear (south) setbacks. The
Building Division has preliminarily reviewed the application for constructability of a basement beneath the
existing residence without affecting the existing nonconforming walls to remain (additional review would
occur with a building permit application). Staff has also discussed and confirmed with the applicant that
existing nonconformities cannot be replaced if they are removed. The proposed scope includes the addition
of a second story and a partial basement near the center of the residence, partially within the required
setbacks. At the basement level, a theater, play area, and half-bathroom are proposed. The proposed
project would enlarge the existing three-bedroom and two-bathroom residence to become a five-bedroom
and four-and-one-half-bathroom residence. The existing site includes a 63.7-square-foot shed and 132-
square-foot trellis that are proposed to be removed; this would reduce existing building coverage to balance
out the proposed additions and their added coverage. In addition, window modifications and exterior work
are proposed and further discussed in this report.

The remodeled residence would meet all Zoning Ordinance requirements for floor area limit (FAL), building
coverage, setbacks, daylight plane, height, and parking, with the exception of the existing nonconformities
on the right side (west) and rear (south) setbacks. Of particular note with regard to Zoning Ordinance
requirements:

e The proposed FAL would be at the maximum of 2,800 square feet. The proposed FAL does not include
the 900-square-foot basement, which is permitted to be excluded from the FAL calculation per the
Zoning Ordinance.

e The proposed building coverage would be at the maximum of 2,100 square feet.

e The proposed height would be 26.7 feet, where a maximum building height of 28 feet is permitted. The
existing residence is 13.1 feet tall.

The applicant’s project plans and project description letter are included as Attachment A, Exhibits A and B,
respectively. A data table summarizing parcel and project attributes is included as Attachment C.

Parking and circulation

The existing, attached two-car garage (18.3 feet by 17.6 feet) is proposed to remain, along with the existing
concrete driveway. The interior garage dimensions are nonconforming with regard to the City’s Parking Stall

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov



Staff Report #: 25-050-PC
Page 3

and Driveway Design Guidelines, however, the residence has historically used the garage to park two
vehicles and the current parking plan is proposed to be maintained. No modifications to parking or
circulation are proposed.

Design and materials

The applicant describes the design of the project as complementing the character of the contemporary
Spanish style residence to the right (west) at 845 Arbor Road. Proposed features include smooth stucco
and vertical wood plank siding, standing seam metal roof, decorative wrought iron railings, and vinyl
windows and doors. The neighborhood consists of single- and two-story residences with a variety of
architectural styles such as ranch, traditional, and contemporary and the proposed residence’s design
would be complementary.

Nonconforming new work value

For projects involving existing nonconforming structures, the City uses standards established by the
Building Division to calculate the replacement and new construction costs on which the use permit threshold
is based. For context, the use permit threshold differs between 75 percent for a single-story structure and
50 percent for a two-story structure. Since the proposed residence would be a two-story structure, the 50
percent threshold applies. The City has determined that the value of the proposed work for the project
would be approximately 208 percent of the replacement value, and therefore requires use permit approval
by the Planning Commission. A use permit is also required as the proposed addition would create a two-
story home that exceeds 50 percent of the existing floor area.

Proposed excavation

The applicant proposes to excavate from the front of the house and utilize steel beams to support the
interior while the soil is being removed. The proposed basement wall is located four feet within the existing
non-conforming wall to allow for construction of the basement foundation and new retaining wall without
impacting the non-conforming wall’s current foundation. The existing floor joints would be sistered to new
joists so they can span to the entire foundation. The new retaining wall would be L-shaped so as not to
interfere with the foundation of the non-conforming wall. Once construction is completed, the excavation
would not be visible.

Trees and landscaping

The project site contains no heritage trees and one non-heritage tree in the front yard, outside of the
proposed construction area, would remain. Several other small trees recently planted along the left (east)
property line would also remain. The site includes an existing hedge at the front of the property on the right
(west) side adjacent to the garage that would be trimmed to meet the Zoning Ordinance maximum height of
four feet within the front setback area (Menlo Park Municipal Code section 16.04.020(a)). This requirement
is ensured as draft condition of approval 2a. No new trees or landscaping are proposed at this time.

Correspondence

The applicant states in their project description letter that they have made efforts to inform and engage
neighboring property owners and the proposal has received neutral to positive responses. As of the
completion of this report, staff has not received any correspondence.

Conclusion
The proposed project would update and improve the housing condition of the existing residence originally

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov



Staff Report #: 25-050-PC
Page 4

constructed in 1951. Staff believes the design and materials of the proposed residence are compatible with
the surrounding neighborhood, which features a mixture of single- and two-story residences in a variety of
architectural styles. The proposed project would feature a consistent, harmonious architectural style. There
would be no visual impact resulting from the proposed basement excavation following construction and the
construction methods have been preliminarily reviewed by the Building Division and would be further
reviewed during a building permit application. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the
proposed project.

Impact on City Resources

The project sponsor is required to pay Planning, Building and Public Works permit fees, based on the City’s
Master Fee Schedule, to fully cover the cost of staff time spent on the review of the project.

Environmental Review

The project is categorically exempt under Section 15301, Class 1 (“Existing Facilities”) of the current
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.

Public Notice

Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72
hours prior to the meeting. Public notification also consisted of publishing a notice in the local newspaper
and notification by mail of owners and occupants within a 300-foot radius of the subject property.

Appeal Period

The Planning Commission action will be effective after 15 days unless the action is appealed to the City
Council, in which case the outcome of the application shall be determined by the City Council.

Attachments
A. Draft Planning Commission resolution approving the use permits
Exhibits to Attachment A
A. Project plans
B. Project description letter
C. Conditions of approval
B. Location map
C. Data table

Report prepared by:
Calvin Chan, Senior Planner

Report reviewed by:
Tom Smith, Principal Planner

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov



Al

ATTACHMENT A

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2025-0XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
MENLO PARK (1) APPROVING A USE PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT
EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR MODIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONS,
INCLUDING A BASEMENT AND SECOND STORY, TO AN EXISTING
NONCONFORMING SINGLE-STORY RESIDENCE LOCATED ON A
SUBSTANDARD LOT WITH REGARD TO LOT WIDTH AND AREA IN
THE R-1-S (SINGLE FAMILY SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL) ZONING
DISTRICT, (2) APPROVING A USE PERMIT FOR EXCAVATION
WITHIN A SIDE SETBACK, AND (3) APPROVING A USE PERMIT TO
CONDUCT MODIFICATIONS TO AN EXISTING NONCONFORMING
STRUCTURE WHERE THE VALUE OF THE WORK EXCEEDS 50
PERCENT OF THE REPLACEMENT VALUE OF THE EXISTING
NONCONFORMING STRUCTURE OVER A 12-MONTH PERIOD, AT
835 ARBOR ROAD.

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (“City”) received an application requesting a use
permit to construct exterior and interior modifications and additions, including a basement
and second story, to an existing nonconforming single-story residence located on a
substandard lot with regard to lot width and area in the R-1-S (Single Family Suburban
Residential) zoning district. The proposal also includes use permit requests for excavation
within a side setback as part of the new basement and for the proposed work to exceed
50 percent of the replacement value of the existing nonconforming structure over a 12-
month period. The proposal would exceed 50 percent of the existing floor area and is
considered equivalent to a new structure (collectively, the “Project”) and is submitted by
Anthony Ho of LPMD Architects (“Applicant”) on behalf of Bryan Shepherd (“Owner”), at
835 Arbor Road (APN 071-261-010) (“Property”). The Project use permit is depicted in
and subject to the development plans and project description letter, which are attached
hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively, and incorporated herein by this reference;
and

WHEREAS, the Property is located in the Single Family Suburban Residential (R-1-S)
district. The R-1-S district supports single-family residential uses; and

WHEREAS, the Property is substandard with regard to minimum lot width and area in the
R-1-S zoning district; and

WHEREAS, the existing residence is nonconforming with regard to the right side (west)
setback, rear (south) setback, and building coverage; and

WHEREAS, the Project includes excavation within a side setback as part of a new
basement; and



A2

Resolution No. 2025-0XX

WHEREAS, the additions would exceed 50 percent of the existing floor area of the main
residence and are therefore considered equivalent to a new structure; and

WHEREAS, the value of the proposed Project would exceed 50 percent of the existing
replacement value in a 12-month period; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Project otherwise complies with all objective standards of the
R-1-S district; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Project was found to be in compliance with City standards; and

WHEREAS, the Project, requires discretionary actions by the City as summarized above,
and therefore the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA,” Public Resources Code
Section 821000 et seq.) and CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14,
815000 et seq.) require analysis and a determination regarding the Project’s
environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, the City is the lead agency, as defined by CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines,
and is therefore responsible for the preparation, consideration, certification, and approval
of environmental documents for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from environmental review pursuant to CEQA
Guidelines section 15301, Class 1 (“Existing Facilities”); and

WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held
according to law; and

WHEREAS, at a duly and properly noticed public hearing held on October 20, 2025, the
Planning Commission fully reviewed, considered, and evaluated the whole of the record
including all public and written comments, pertinent information, documents and plans,
prior to taking action regarding the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MENLO PARK PLANNING COMMISSION HEREBY
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. The Planning Commission has considered the full record before it,
which may include but is not limited to such things as the staff report, public testimony,
and other materials and evidence submitted or provided, and the Planning Commission
finds the foregoing recitals are true and correct, and they are hereby incorporated by
reference into this Resolution.

Section 2. Conditional Use Permit Findings. The Planning Commission of the City of Menlo
Park does hereby make the following Findings:



A3

Resolution No. 2025-0XX

The approval of the use permit to construct exterior and interior modifications and additions
to an existing nonconforming residence is granted based on the following findings, which
are made pursuant to Menlo Park Municipal Code Section 16.82.030:

1. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will,
under the circumstance of the particular case, not be detrimental to the health,
safety, morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing in the
neighborhood of such proposed use, or injurious or detrimental to property and
improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the city because:

a. Consideration and due regard were given to the nature and condition of
all adjacent uses and structures, and to general plans for the area in
guestion and surrounding areas, and impact of the application hereon; in
that, the proposed use permit is consistent with the R-1-S zoning district
and the General Plan because nonconforming two-story residences are
allowed to be modified and expanded beyond 50 percent of the value of
the proposed new work in any 12-month period, subject to granting of a
use permit. The proposed project includes excavation within a side
setback for a new basement, which is permitted subject to granting of a
use permit.

b. The proposed Project would update and improve the housing condition of
the existing residence originally constructed in 1951. The residence would
meet front (north) and left side (east) setbacks and would continue to
maintain the nonconforming right side (west) setback of 4.8 feet where 10
feet is required and the nonconforming rear (south) setback of 18.7 feet
where 20 feet is required.

c. The proposal would be compliant with all parking requirements providing
two covered garage parking spaces.

d. The proposed Project is designed to meet all the applicable codes and
ordinances of the City of Menlo Park Municipal Code and the Commission
concludes that the Project would not be detrimental to the health, safety,
and welfare of the surrounding community as the proposed residence
would be located in a single-family neighborhood and has been designed
in a way to complement the existing scale of surrounding homes.

Section 3. Conditional Use Permit. The Planning Commission approves Use Permit
No. PLN2025-00015, which use permit is depicted in and subject to the development
plans and project description letter, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively. The use permit is conditioned
in conformance with the conditions attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference as Exhibit C.



A4

Resolution No. 2025-0XX

Section 4. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW. The Planning Commission makes the following
findings, based on its independent judgment after considering the Project, and having
reviewed and taken into consideration all written and oral information submitted in this matter:

1. The Project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to Cal. Code
of Regulations, Title 14, 815303 et seq. (Existing Facilities).

Section 5. SEVERABILITY

If any term, provision, or portion of these findings or the application of these findings to a
particular situation is held by a court to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining
provisions of these findings, or their application to other actions related to the Project,
shall continue in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the City.

I, Kyle Perata, Assistant Community Development Director of the City of Menlo Park, do
hereby certify that the above and foregoing Planning Commission Resolution was duly

and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said Planning Commission on
November 3, 2025, by the following votes:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

RECUSED:

IN WITNESS THEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of
said City on this day of November 2025.

PC Liaison Signature

Kyle Perata
Assistant Community Development Director
City of Menlo Park

Exhibits

A. Project plans
B. Project description letter
C. Conditions of approval



EXHIBIT A

& N AT

Aba R LA

i BEREANT | VEeoWRiFRE wETET
il SRR

A ERCHS PLICH R L ELEMTISN
EAD  WAMMET PLECR R
T LrT)

ALl LR R

ARy P PLAS

s semn

al R RRS

BAd ETRESTRCARE FLE

a1 M, SRCRATISSE

BAE ST AT SAEETING
AR DNLDR L MATERUL

835 ARBOR ROAD Architocis
ke dpnrh o
MENLO PARK, CA B g
USE PERMIT FOR RENOVATION
PROJECT SCOPE
[URT2 Y
ryererbay bperai ey DT T
IRUTEL TS AT B SAALE MATIAC 1 ST 20, T, I A e
SRR
| T AONCORFORG WAL B T
| %0 BE CRALNEY, SO F
[ ————
Earnpest s PROJECT DATA
ﬂ“_:_ :l::“
T B00% A
TTPE OF CFETRLTEM e
e HEemm
EINAN FLOOE MATA LIMIT ALOWER . JA00 @
S ik e o S
IR BT ERRASL ALLOWER = 1000 T DA i
ST BN COVRAGE « LENS  ETH PLpakibvl COMMINTE AR
OPOIED WELDING COVELAE + 13082 W DY P ORATO AW
GENERAL NOTES
e P R T, S o 2 T S S ST
" ‘ S T R TR T e o e
' HOUSE ADDTION
L 1
LD PR, DA
w = —_—
[0E COVER
EE * SHEET
= e
c NEUTRELL 3fF r_d_—.-_— : AO—O
— —p— ey - f=e

A5



. O =
-hnl'l' Ctm s
? 1127 CASTLE WAY,
k. * EXISTING 1 sToR
- SIN

AREA PLAN

3/32" = 1-0"

855 ARBOR RD, [t

EXISTING

5ToRY siNoLe I -

865 ARBOR RD,
XISTING

-5TOf
SINGLE FAMILY

0 5-41 10-gn

SCALE: 3/32" =

21-41

1-0n

A6

LPMD

Architects

1288 Kifer Road, Unit 206,

Sunnyvale, 14086

Telephone : 408-992-0280
: 408-992-0281

WWMIALLBIDT

mmITCMID'IEmT
N ITS CURRENT LOCA

PLANNNG COMMENTS 5/23/25
PLANNNG COMMENTS 8/13/25

HOUSE ADDITION

835 ARBOR RD,
MNENLO PARK, GA'

Project Na: DATE: 2/26/25

Sheet Tite:
AREA
PLAN

AO.a



LEGEND
e O SET 5/8” REBAR & PLASTIC CAP - LS 9022
ﬂ 4 FOUND CUT CROSS IN TOP OF CONCRETE CURR
#T  TREE TRUNK DIAMETER (INCHES)
N\ BC  BULDING CORNER
B BOTTOM OF WALL
c 0P OF CURE
CONC CONCRETE.
D DRAN NLET
oW DRIVEWAY
M ELECTRICAL METER
F o FENCE
FOUND 1.5 IRON PIPE = TR — - A ROMINE
l’ % B & 3 I FH  FIRE HYDRANT
e—— H

fue g L FOUND STANDARD STREET
WELL MOVUMENT WTH ﬂauj

6L GUTTER LIP
GH  GAS METER
P GATE POST

2
<

;,‘,,‘,,7,,‘,,‘,;7,,‘%@ E GRVL  GRAVEL
2o B

GV GAS VALVE
1C8 IRRIGATION CONTROL BOX

T - 16V IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE
PR [ WP UTUTY JONT POLE
o WR775" LAND  LANDING

%ﬁ = X

i BASIS OF BEARINGS:
po CaNTERL
NS6IT00"W PER (31 RSH 38)

SANTA CRUZ AVE

NS31600

2
lpremca|
E

Saer & [ & % SSCO SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT
k &r e k] B N SSWH  SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
= & SR T0P OF STAR
W umuTy VALE
e O T O e e o e O e e e o ¥ BACK OF SDEWALK
WM WATER METER

i
i . o SUBLECT PROPERTY BOUNDARY
I[/ 262.28" TO WERTH AVENVE RIGHT OF WAY/ADJACENT PARCEL BOUNDARY

-

g p——

— <o

S

<
.

7

xaie

(a1 Asw 38)
(31 RSH 36)

I S

EXISTING WROUGHT IRON FENCE LINE

5 PUBLIC UTIUTY EASEUENT

5 PURIC UTLITY

OWNER:

BRYAN SHEPHERD & SAHAR GHAFARI
835 ARBOR ROAD

MENLO PARK, CA 94025

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

CENTERLINE OF ARBOR ROAD

AS SHOMN ON THE MAP GREENFIELD (31 RSM 36)
BEARING: NS638'00"W

BENCHMARK:
ELEVATIONS BASED UPON NAVDBS DATUM
DERIVED WA RAPID STATIC GRS OBSERVATION

100.00°"

~
XEo pen

SHEPHERD & GHAFARI
b (2020-098603)
AREA:6.000% S0 FT
s ~BUSTG ULONG
835 ARBOR ROAD

NOTE:
EXISTING BULDINGS SHOWN HEREON DEPICT FIELD SURVEYED LOCATION AT GROUND LEVEL
(UNLESS OTHERMISE NOTED). MEASUREWENTS TAKEN AT EXTERIOR FINISHED SIDING/TRIM.

N3316700°E
N3316°00°F

DISTANCES SHOMN IN FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF.

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT:

1 CERTIFY THAT THIS PARCEL'S BOUNDARY WAS ESTABLISHED BY ME OF UNDER MY
SUPERVISION AND /S BASED ON A FIELD SURVEY IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE LAND
SURVEYOR'S ACT. ALL MONUMENTS ARE OF THE CHARACTER AND OCCUPY THE POSITIONS
INDICATED AND ARE SUFFICIENT T0 ENABLE THE SURVEY TO BE RETRACED.

ENF

(31 RsW 38

RVAN CENGEL, L.5. 9022
DATE:4/09/2025

boe B me ap

N5638°00"W 60,00

B

R
5

10" PUBLIC UTUITY EASEMENT (31 ASH 38)

BOUNDARY &
TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

THAT REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THAT CERTAIN DEED
RECORDED SEPTEMBER 21, 2020
RIES NO. 2020-098603
CITY OF MENLO PARK, COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, CALIFORNIA
APRIL, 2025 SCALE: 1" = 10"

N
C
10 s s e o s )|

BA\| BAY AREA LAND
LS| SURVEYING INC

3065 RICHMOND PARKWAY, SUITE 101
RICHMOND, CA 94806
(510) 223-5167

APN: 071-026-261-01 SHEET 1 OF 1 24-5211

AO0.1

A7



TR B PR v i, B T
MEEIEDOW GO o0

- ; el W
K; =
= = = iy
" A .
; |
gE - -ﬂ:J I I-- :] a
3 umm—\é_ ff ! L] Bl | Eg
: . | | el =
1o =L Lol T
LABDEE PR BOREHS — Eu ,‘—“:-‘—‘_ IH : i
’ce .Ig? “ Il- | F
Y | [ e %

: . | o
‘.’:m#mnn“;ﬂ_-.&\_—ﬂw E"] D j u_ll ;‘H\,““-.._:H-..._
IS i T M e B |

Y -

A

TTE €
ENIETIG

/
14

I-‘ -I

= N oW wenoy et T"--—-m.gm L
o — ==
. T L= ——— % =, :
e LR - W
I O ¥ T !’I‘ q_:c.nl ln.l alE PLAN
- L= ST
s B :
__-—__F___ I e
_____-_F-___' W = 1-0f
I_____——\l"—_ = ) o
o - T A WS LITT

ARBOR ROAD .

A" BOF

S——

A8

LPMD

Architects

1288 Kder Road, Unit 204,
Sunnyvale,

Telephone - 403-992-0280
Faix | A08-512- 0281

HOUSE ADDITION

SITE PLAN

Fawderer Byl <

A10




LPMD

Architects

1288 Kifer Road, Unit 206,
Sunnyvale, CA 94086
Telephone : 408-992-0280
Fax 408-992-0281
y TO. ROOF
22,
o =

4

g

1310

H [E) PATIO

/ N N—
(51 18T FL / \
RN U X S P [ \ @
"~ 1 Fc AVERAGE &

- - _ - — __— — - _—__—_ _ NATURAL GRADE 8204+
H ! H

EXISTING RIGHT ELEVATION

V4 = 1-0°

C TS
H
i
3
g

(E] LIVING

TO. ROOF

s

%

34sy

13-

= (E) GARAGE PLANNING COMMENTS 5/23/25
(E) PORCH e Conms Bt

(E] 18T FL
FF 83,64

AVERAGE x| o
N __NATURAL GRADE 82047

EXISTNG I—E'—r E_EVATION AVERAGE NATURAL GRADE = |8169 + 8192 + 8240 +

V4 = 1-0°

8216) / 4 = 8204

EXISTING FLOOR PLAN
V=10

N 0. Roor = 0. Roor
+ ot
| —

P

k\ 2215 835 ARBOR D,
Q Q ) MENLO PARK, CA
PoctNx  DATE 2828
L y B } } Shoot T
e EXISTNG
ELEVATIONS
B P S | DD _Hus T —
AVERAGE &) AVERAGE & Sheet Mo
———1 _ NATURAL GRADE 82047 —_ | — __ NATURAL GRADE 82.04<]
EXISTING REAR ELEVATION EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION A11
V4 = 1-0° V4 = 1-0°
o Shoota

A9



(1]

66
408 -BE202AD
0500281

e

1288 Kiler Aoad, Unk 206,
Sen )

Talepl

Firt

LPMD
Architects

House
et
~
FLOOR PLAN
A20

| IREUS

[
Wi b

k
m
:
¢

e

freessssssssmaa=

FLAT AREA
W-gh N ey

(bt SRR Al
RRFACH AR

DGR . WAL
DT THR WL

g P

=
"
P ———

| B gy |

BTAIR

THEATER
a7-5* 05§

!
|
1
1
|
_
_
|
|
_
I
4

INDICATE ST PLOOR BOUNOARY
s

S ———

Al10



LPMD

Architects

m 1 1298 Kifee Rsad, Uit 205
Surnyunle. TA BATRE
l Telegihone | S0E.00R-N2AN
Fon - BT )

'
[
| = s %
| 4
i |
TR B — |
i
]
'| .
Il [ | e 3 s |
[ | [
[ [
i I I i
[ ||
Led E=-)
T
[ Sl v s | H
I | | -
uwcrm o — ! | T AT AORCCMFORMIS WL B T
[ | I | I — = [
| i | | i MRS
| | S [ X RN SHET [T AR B LT
T LAY LOGATIoN

=

||
5

|

i

i

< wi Livnn
5 s e |
= 1
H
. =
10
1 1
==,
W ATTIC AOEER
il
F LR ] :‘l
i R B I R ey |
i I
e e a— | ! s I
] G I |
—q |
| I
L !
- =
@ PLRN] L WAL HOUSE ADDITION
o . s e o
< W oL -

B T
SN WAL

[T

B FLOOR PLAN

WRLL L P = . - |

A21

PROPOSED 15T FLOOR PLAN

T

ARER.CF ADOTIER

RO RERTRATICN

All



Architects
s i 1259 Kifir R, Lirst 208,
i o S e a '°£E§E 2
i i Fix. AcE-pax0aei
i i
I hacdaad |
1
i
: - DICATE 5T FLOOR BOuNDARY
CHOSTIND 36T JHTE— ;-__.__.
AT ST FLEE PATH " ‘\ !
\
y i
i
1
|
[}
:
4 - + . —— 1}
: T |__| '
'I‘I' E A CRCOHFORM WAL & W7
¥ T T, A
= i 1 PEMGLIN IS 7 CAET I LT
o, i | (P ik H W ITH CLFFIRT LOCATIN
| £ |
1 || ]} 1
e e ]
il a 1
*‘é.\ | b |- !
[T b | Lt : H
LU [| e L :
I ] : E I
i
—, o =l 1
:| o T -
L 113 r : TI, -—j_ E HOE
s v e . .
! : i
Poane | '
[}
H 1}
I T E =
oo L
= L1 _ . T
- [}
-. BETAOIN 44 i ]
EEYE 1
e : f
i 1
|
: 1 T ey = H
T ]
1 |_' : 3
i Wi | L
{ H : T e
i i o sl oo wiie
L B -
-9
i ki = e o
GO PR
EREs [E ADDMoH [—y— BATE S
Lo
PROPOSED NEW ZND FLODR PLAN a0
g FLOCR PLAN
Fasem oy [u]
L L -]
o s

Al12



2 i it m._, :
=2 i o S
o5 Hi yil || 8
- i ol ty
i I i
-
Juli
e T e e A e | o e e i e s B ¢
L
m...‘.... mﬁ "1 ........... 8 - \M m
m —9®
| : - g 7 Pl _--Jr |
m O T
| |
S— " - | :
| | :
{1 — o | :
_.r-wﬂw i £ |
| |
| | "

EXISTING ROOF PLAN

1" = 908

Al3




2ND FLOOR SIDE SETBACK

777777777777777777 TOP OF ROOF,
ATTIC T, SKYLIGHT
® ATTIC @
TOP PLATE
— _
MASTER BEOROON L
| N0 FL P
___d - L _rrosg) 2
- _ 4 I n ~ _
| -
| 3|
& | 3|
N |
= |
I |
C |
N | PL
|| r Lvive |
oINING }
! £) 1T FL
Ll FF 8364
[ AVERAGE B
£ 82 - _ __ NATURAL GRADE 8204
- & >
) o 2
F E A 2
EGRESS 3 C ] b
|CieHTWELL BASEMENT 3| C ]
C ] IR
r h R A
FRAMING SECTION A L 2
PP 7564
= T RO : T o LG 2
14" = 1-0" ki i3 o
i 2 N I NI, NI
e 2 N I NI, IR
R I LIINLLIIN
e TOP OF ROOF
ROOF BEYOND
3|
3|
ATTIC
TOP PLATE
_ - E=—x = = = d -
3|
VASTER BATHROOM BEOROON lcLoseT] HALL BATHROOM
ATTIC 0 FL %
1 __ o - ___1 | | Fress) _ _ %
5 2
2 LIVING ROOM [E) BEDROOM
. [e) eaRAGE
(BT FL
- _ Fr 8364
ANEOREE oraoe s204
EXISTING 2% siope _ g E] CRAWL SPACE 2| Fe 824 L
I
3 BASEMENT
g AVERAGE NATURAL GRADE = (8169 + 8192 + 8240 + 8216) / 4 = 8204
BASEMENT
e FRAMING SECTION B
NN, AR

V4 = 1-0"

Al4

LPMD

Architects

1288 Kifer Road, Unit 206,
Sunnyvale, CA 94086
Telephone : 408-992-0280
Fax : 408-992-0281

HOUSE ADDITION

=i G
Project No: DATE 2125725
SECTIONS
Roview by:
A31



NETAL AWNING I
METAL RooF SAME AS ROOF MATERIAL P M D

. Architects

1288 Kifer Road, Unit 206,
Sunnyvale, CA 94086
Telephone : 408-992-0280
F 408-992-0281

N
WALL MOUNTED™
WROUGHT RON .
BALCONY

500

DECORATIVE TRIM

e e — - — - -

VERTICAL SIDING PANELS
L — vinve winoow

STUCCO

TOP OF PLATE
{TOP OF PLATE

90"

| ANY NONCONFORMNG WALL 15 NOT
5 — WALL MOUNT LIGHT TO BE DEMOLSHED, AND F
2 - SECTIONAL METAL GARAGE DOOR 'DEMOLISHED IT CANNOT BE REBULT
IN IS CURRENT LOCATION.
| sTucco
g o7 rL
_lL _ _ —fres
AVERAGE AVERAGE %
RECESSED LOW WALL WITH STUCCO
PAINTED WOOD PANEL 100!
VINYL WINDOW- ENTRY DOOR
RECESSED ARCHED OPENING
14" = 1-0°
R
— - .
PLANNG COMMENTS 8/1r28
? : W H \L
4 — =1 J_ _ o - - ___
T
3|
° —7T
- 3|
H | 3
o
3 HOUSE ADDITION
2
835 ARBOR D,
MENLO PARK, CA
Ie) 167 FL Project Nec oate 2825
I _ Fraves ——
AVERAGE
NATURAL GRADE 8204

ELEVATIONS

Roview by:
RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION AVERAGE NATURAL GRADE = 18160 + 8192 + 8240 + 8216) / 4 = 8204 Snoot Nox
V4" = 1-0° A3 2
of Shests

Al5



METAL ROQF
N

196

L

90

VINYL WINDOW

P

o

300

TRIM

26-8
1961

ING PATIO TO BE RE-BUILT

16HT

”\ \ (€] 15T FL!
- LR L | _ _FF 8d6¢
1 T
AVERAGE — AVERAGE
NATURAL GRADE 82.04 | - - \ NATURAL 6}

\— VINYL SLIDING DOOR

EXISTING CONCRETE STOOP

REAR ELEVATION

LVERTICAL SIDING PANELS

\— VINYL SLIDING DOOR

EXISTING PATIO

14" = 1-0°

501

|_——— WALL MOUNT WROUGHT IRON RAILINGS

90"

60

26-83'

[E) 15T FL
L Fre&4 |

AVERAGE

NATURAL GRADE 8204

EXISTING PATIO TO BE RE-BULLT

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION

VERTICAL SIDING PANELS

METAL AWNING AT DOOR

V4" = 1-0"

AVERAGE NATURAL GRADE = 8169 + 8192 + 8240 + 8216 / 4 = 8204

LPMD

Architects

1288 Kifer Road, Unit 206,
Sunnyvale, CA 94086
Telephone : 408-992-0280
F 408-992-0281

Roview by:
Snoot Nox

Al6

PLANNNG COMMENTS 5/23/25
PLANGNG COMMENTS 8/13/25

HOUSE ADDITION

835 ARBOR RD,
MENLO PARK, CA

Project Nt DATE 2125725
Shoot Tiex

ELEVATIONS

A33



— O
Bz

() (T ) )

825 ARBOR RD.

826 ARBOR RD. FRONT ELEVATION
were

835 ARBOR RD. - PROPOSED BUILDING ELEVATION

AVERAGE NATURAL GRADE = 8169 + 8192 + 8240 + 8216) / 4 = 8204

STREETSCAPE ELEVATION
were

Al7

LPMD

Architects

1288 Kifer Road, Unit 206,
Sunnyvale, CA 94086
Telephone : 408-992-0280
Fax : 408-992-0281

HOUSE ADDITION

835 ARBOR RD,
MENLO PARK, CA

Project No: DATE 2125725
Shost Tiex

STREETSCAPE

A34



£ i 1 Kiler Ripnd, Unit £140,
: a, O B4088
— i e
~ : Fax 40A-BEFATR
{ e
S P
1 I wif
| \
T — - 5
. | Il &
& 1
| a - sy
[ FLOGH AREA CALTULATIONE
s '| el ] EC L L2
| a e T a R
- 2 . AW Y MT e
w L | © W w oid . =T,
| e AH | H ¥ PN ) R 0 LT
i fl b, 3 & oL WakE B T
s { | L= s ' - i AY ORCEMFONGN RULL I RO
= : i oo R § Fab Ry T 0 B CEMEIN, 0§
| 1 = [ SVERT R Il 3 e BT RLPT | DL [T LW I T
i 1 SRS WARATE P Wy S L PT. TN CIRRRNT LOCATIN,
= A Sra ranl " i @ A Ll Rad
L v L= S [ ooy 34688 FL
4 L o8 T
o z -~ L ot e P
g [ | L e ] a5 0 T
@_mm . o e i g P
i~ | A
TR ] = o F " AW 5 DT w04 BT
q Lo R ) g
4] | # ' R 4 L e
i s E [ b 1w
ﬂ ToTAL T
I s mge
J T R R LW T
I i s L] W ox e s &g T
. Py i sa et P
arap g M FiuE y e i
oA 148 o
FLARKR DM MM
r foyeery =y
i A e
— ta ———
N =T FLOOH i van Py atn o e
L 7% L8 1 1 == - JLETTRT T
| | A LI AR LT L et
| ' XIS PLOOR Rtk EuSSTI Ui - VRS GRS o ST T ol
| . " : 1 . PEOFOSED FLOCH MEER. T FLOOY | COVEEST) GAMMSE + TMD FLOGE = ITRRT I
| | %
u
Loy L
g
e |
E BULD0N ITNTMOR
E LN COVERAEE LT WE LOWES,  RED ST 1 B X W
| EUNTY R DR T 5B 2000 BF 20T
H PRONOIED AULDDNE CEWERASEL WU FLBM B Pl e B e RO OF | MGG WP B34 HCUSE ACDITION
s -,
H LS AL G,
E [ MR
— ~"PROPOSED

Al8



Architects

200 Kiler Aivad, Unf 208,
G EA SA08E

Telephoas * 408-832.0280
Fur S05-UET02E7

FLOCR AFEN CALOILATIONS
-
| i, pat T m
: 4 = I T Lo L e
- ' | * LA [
L] B ol L Bata Ba Pl
z e g W e
B o a4 m
' 3 3 [k Ll el AT
TOTAL: Bed B PT
: 3
| H 3 e sas A E R e i -~ L B
| B v wIue o W 53 FT e e
. e B 3 o 343 48 P, MTLINED [T CAST B LY
& AL ST P ™~
= .
l_ % EIERES FEH 4 W iowam o s P
- e P TANF 1 rE P Ll
-~ - B
* a

M FLOGR ﬁmm-un—m

-

HOUSE ADDITION

S O D,
ML AR, .

e e —
— T

AREA GALCULATIONS

Bemw 00 O

Ad42

Al19



WOOD FASCIA BOARD - SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW6060

®rs

ITS.

SMOOTH STUCCO - SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW7008

SMOOTH STUCCO
O

VERTICAL SIDING - WOODPLANK COMPOSITE CLADDING, LIGHT OAK

VERTICAL SIDNG

METAL ROOF AND SUNSHAOE - AEP SPAN METAL ROOF, COOL WALNUT

ITALIAN 10 WORKSHOP CUSTOM WROUGHT IRON BALCONY

SECTIONAL STEEL GARAGE DOOR - CHIL DOOR

SECTIONAL STEEL GARAGE DOOR

(7)WROUGHT RON BALCONY

NTS.

A20

LPMD

Architects

1288 Kifer Road, Unit 206,
Sunnyvale, CA 94086
Telephone : 408-992-0280
Fax : 408-992-0281

HOUSE ADDITION

a0 P G
Ty
COLOR &
MATERIAL

Roview by:
A43



EXHIBIT B

835 Arbor Road

Project Description

e Purpose of the proposal: To accommodate the size of his family and their desired uses,
property owner would like to add a second floor and a partial basement to the existing house
in order to gain living space.

e Existing and proposed uses: Existing use is a one-story single-family with an attached
garage. Proposed use will be a 2-story single-family with an attached garage.

e Scope of work: Project willadd a partial basement and a second floor to the existing single-
story residence. Floor Area, including garage, will be at 2,800 sf, and site coverage will be at
2,099 sf. Both the floor area limit and site coverage will be within the allowable in the R1S
zone.

e Basis for site layout: Property owner respects the urban fabric of the neighborhood (lot
pattern and placement of structures) and wants to maintain the existing open space. As
such, the project will retain the location and footprint of the existing house. The vast majority
of the added square footage will occur on the second floor. Curb cut will remain unchanged.

e Architectural style, materials, colors, and construction methods: The architecture of
this neighborhood is of mixed style. The neighbor on the right is of a contemporary Spanish
style, with metal roof and stucco siding. The proposed project will match the character of
this neighbor. To further blend into the neighborhood, this house will use gentle sloped roof,
earth tone colors and a touch of wood siding, echoing the other houses on this block.

Proposed exterior wall will be a combination of smooth stucco painted in SW7008 color,
and Woodplank Composite Cladding vertical siding in Light Oak color

Proposed roof will be standing seam AEP Span Metal Roof, in Cool Walnut color

Proposed windows will be Milgard Vinyl, in light brown color

Proposed front door will be Woodplank, in Light Oak color

Proposed garage door will be C.H.l. Door, in steel, sectional, with wood cladding

A21



A22

e Outreach to neighboring properties:

Bryan Shepherd (Owner of 835 Arbor) spoke on the phone with Kerry Eastman, the owner of
the home behind (1130 Sexton Way), in April 2025. She was interested to know his remodel
plans and if he was selling his property. He confirmed that he was not selling and he was
looking to expand and add a 2nd story. She had no concerns about his proposed plans.

Bryan spoke to the neighbors to the right (845 Arbor Rd), Alex and Jesse, in April 2025. They
built a brand-new home on their lot a couple years ago and were supportive of his project
and the expansion. They even gave him some tips on what to expectin terms of timeline and
recommended him to go with a metal roof. They have a few informal check-in’s regarding
progress on the project.

Bryan has been checkingin constantly with Mike, the owner at 856 Arbor Rd. They discussed
the remodel project. Bryan has not heard any objections from Mike.

Bryan often checks in with Adreane of 865 Arbor while walking in the neighborhood. They
have briefly talked about the plans and the progress. Bryan has not noticed any objections.

The neighbor to the left (825 Arbor) is a renter. Bryan has not formally met with her about his
project, but they have a good relationship. Bryan has not yet been able to meet the owner of
this property.



EXHIBIT C

LOCATION: PROJECT NUMBER: APPLICANT: OWNER:
835 Arbor Road PLN2025-00015 Anthony Ho, Bryan Shepherd
LPMD Architects

PROJECT CONDITIONS:

1. The use permit shall be subject to the following standard conditions:

a. The applicant shall be required to apply for a building permit within one year from the
date of approval (by November 3, 2026) for the use permit to remain in effect.

b. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans
prepared by LPMD Architects consisting of 16 plan sheets, dated October 20, 2025 and
approved by the Planning Commission on November 3, 2025, except as modified by
the conditions contained herein, subject to review and approval of the Planning
Division.

c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all Sanitary District,
Menlo Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly
applicable to the project.

d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all requirements of the
Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly
applicable to the project.

e. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility
installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and
Building Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that
cannot be placed underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan
shall show exact locations of all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers,
junction boxes, relay boxes, and other equipment boxes.

f.  Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit plans indicating that the applicant shall remove and replace any damaged
and significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be submitted
for review and approval of the Engineering Division.

g. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval of the Engineering
Division. The Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of
grading, demolition or building permits.

h. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall pay all fees incurred through staff
time spent reviewing the application.

i. The applicant or permittee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Menlo
Park or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding
against the City of Menlo Park or its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside,
void, or annul an approval of the Planning Commission, City Council, Community
Development Director, or any other department, committee, or agency of the City
concerning a development, variance, permit, or land use approval which action is
brought within the time period provided for in any applicable statute; provided, however,
that the applicant’s or permittee’s duty to so defend, indemnify, and hold harmless shall
be subject to the City’s promptly notifying the applicant or permittee of any said claim,
action, or proceeding and the City’s full cooperation in the applicant’s or permittee’s
defense of said claims, actions, or proceedings.

j-  Notice of Fees Protest — The applicant may protest any fees, dedications, reservations,
or other exactions imposed by the City as part of the approval or as a condition of

PAGE: 1 of 2
A23



A24

LOCATION:
835 Arbor Road

PROJECT NUMBER:
PLN2025-00015

APPLICANT:
Anthony Ho,
LPMD Architects

OWNER:
Bryan Shepherd

PROJECT CONDITIONS:

approval of this development. Per California Government Code 66020, this 90-day
protest period has begun as of the date of the approval of this application.

2. The use permit shall be subject to the following standard conditions:

a. The existing hedge at the front of the property on the right (west) side shall be trimmed
and maintained to meet the Zoning Ordinance maximum height of four feet within the
front setback area.

PAGE: 2 of 2




ATTCHMENT B

i =3 T ol T
8 o W o/  vBE
WA o /AN X000, 5% /O ol A
£ & N A % ) a 4 AR T : b
. B -y L . 33:' 2 4 !fh,g-@r?é\ 2 e:ﬂ\% = al-:?:?f ai:b &,
& L. E 5 o S @ Ty %%x«%}“ {7 ey L RN T
A e Frig diz o o - TN
(& NSRS o (GO (e (BI85
’El.‘" : ﬁ e N P o B Pl ,JT L% _;ﬁ,éf} s, cl? B3 %h“‘-ﬁ' ey &;
il gt & %o %i@ S g B e A OSSN T
'R "l?lf':' " ;% %:';}.' b % o{f—’%% q;‘ . f\g?',p; - Q{% ealfﬁ__\% A &?.5}' / %‘_;.
5 8y <l (LT W e L S A e e
i 2 = e T sy Fp )
= ,r% J/’-’b o R e @ e ) $ A "% 7y ol
A PR T T e e o I VGRS G35
& SN, 7y 05,8 R D8 g 0 8. 7 87 Ny
E ] & 8 B ) L S [ s R
5 . & .SF -fg?; o o n@:ﬁ %?§£§ %, qﬁsx & e, B A 3]
v | & AR é}é‘r %% %h F T ’4‘3 ..__.- ‘F\‘{::.-{,“‘ o _45-
S e ; g Ly o
amaisind | SRy TIIE S S A S S g T8
b ¥, B ¥ d

o
i

?}% - /

&

0D i
g A

City of Menlo Park

Location Map
835 Arbor Road (PLN2025-00015)

CITY OF

MENLO PARK
Scale: 1:4,000 Drawn By: CC Checked By: TAS Date: 11/3/2025 Sheet: 1

Bl



835 Arbor Road — Attachment C: Data Table

ATTACHMENT C

PROPOSED EXISTING ZONING
PROJECT PROJECT ORDINANCE
Lot area 6,000 sf 6,000 sf 10,000  sfmin
Lot width 60 ft 60 ft 80 ftmin
Lot depth 100 ft 100 ft 100 ftmin
Setbacks
Front (north) 20 ft 20 ft 20 ft min
Rear (south) 18.7 ft 18.7 ft 20 ftmin
Side-left (east) 15-15.1 ft 15-15.1 ft 10 ft min
Side-right (west) 49 ft 49 ft 10 ftmin
Building coverage 2,099.2 sf 2,224 sf 2,100 sfmax
35 % 37 % 35 % max
Floor area limit (FAL) 2799.7 sf 1,798 sf 2,800 sf max total
Square footage by floor 1,458.5 sf-first level 1,344 sf-first level
354.6 sf-garage 390.7 sf-garage
986.6 sf-second level 63.7 sf-shed
899.5 sf-basement 132  sf-trellis
164.1 sf-patio 189.4 sf-patio
122 sf-porch 104.5 sf-porch
Square footage of 3,985.3 sf 2,224 sf
buildings
Building height 26.7 ft 13.1 ft 28 ft max
Parking 2 covered spaces 2 covered spaces 2 spaces
(1 covered space min)
Trees Heritage trees 0 Non-Heritage trees New trees 0
Heritage trees 0 Non-Heritage trees Total Number of 1
proposed for removal proposed for trees
removal
Notes 1. Areas shown highlighted indicate a substandard or nonconforming situation. The maximum
building coverage for the existing single-story development is 40%.
2. The proposed basement floor area is excluded from FAL (MPMC 16.04.313(c)(1)).

C1l




Community Development

STAFF REPORT

Planning Commission

Meeting Date: 11/3/2025
Ty OF Staff Report Number: 25-051-PC
MENLO PARK
Regular Business: Review of draft 2026 Planning Commission meeting
dates

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission provide feedback on the proposed 2026 Planning
Commission calendar, included as Attachment A.

Policy Issues
Review of the draft Planning Commission calendar does not raise any particular policy issues.

Background
Each year, the Planning Commission reviews the Planning Commission calendar for the upcoming year.

Analysis
Attachment A identifies the proposed 2026 Planning Commission meeting dates. The proposed meeting
dates were selected with consideration of the following factors:

e Typical schedule of two meetings per month on Mondays;

¢ City holidays and other noted celebrations and religious holidays;

o Reduction of scheduling conflicts with other City Commission meetings; and
e Avoidance of back-to-back meetings when possible.

At times, the Planning Commission may also need to schedule study sessions or special meetings. These
meetings can be scheduled on an as needed basis, and therefore, have not been identified on the calendar.

In addition to the above listed factors, the draft 2025 Planning Commission calendar takes into account
Columbus Day/Indigenous Peoples’ Day, which while not a City holiday, is observed by the local school
districts and some government and private sector organizations. At the November 3 meeting, the
Commissioners should be prepared to discuss their schedules to determine if any modifications are needed
to the draft schedule. Staff recognizes that schedule conflicts may arise in the future, but if the Commission
can determine if any meeting dates would result in a lack of a quorum, these dates should be avoided now.
For example, if a Planning Commissioner is aware of a particularly problematic conflict with a local school
break, that can be discussed at this meeting.

The Planning Commission may make a formal motion/second and vote to approve the draft calendar (with

or without revisions), or Commissioners may provide individual input for staff to review and finalize
administratively. Once the Commission has approved the 2026 meeting dates or provided direction to staff,

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov



Staff Report #: 25-051-PC
Page 2

staff will provide the City Clerk with the information and update the City’s webpage.

Impact on City Resources
Review of the draft Planning Commission calendar does not affect City resources.

Environmental Review

Review of the draft Planning Commission calendar is not a “project” under the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA), and thus no environmental review is required.

Public Notice

Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72
hours prior to the meeting.

Attachments
A. Draft 2026 Planning Commission Calendar

Report prepared by:
Corinna Sandmeier, Principal Planner

Report reviewed by:
Kyle Perata, Assistant Community Development Director

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 menlopark.gov



ATTACHMENT A

PLANNING COMMISSION
DRAFT MEETING DATES FOR 2026

January February March
S M T W T F S S M T WT F S S M T W T F S
2 3 1 2 3 4 5 R 7 1 2 3 4 5 W 7
4 5 6 7 8 10 s M 10 11 12 13 14 s EM 10 11 12 13 14
1 BBl 13 14 15 16 17 15 Bl 17 18 19 B 21 15 16 17 18 19 B 21
18 EN 20 21 22 BB 24 22 [EEN 24 25 26 27 98 2 BN 4 25 2 27 2
25 QL 27 28 29 30 31 2 30 31
April May June
S M T WT F S S M T WT F S S M T WT F S
1 2 EN ¢+ 2 1 2 3 4 5 6
sl 7 8 9 10 11 s s 6 7 8 9 70 9 10 u B s
12 13 14 15 16 Ul 18 10 11 12 13 14 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
VPN 21 2 23 A4 % 17 BEN 19 2 21 22 23 21 28 u 2 B o
2 27 28 29 30 u Bl %6 27 8 30 98 29 30
31
July August September
S M T WT F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 EN ¢4 1 1 2 3 5
5 6 7 8 9 [BUN 11 2 3 4 5 ¢ N s ¢ KM 8 9 10 11 12
12 BBl 14 15 16 17 18 o N 11 12 13 14 15 13 B 15 16 17 R 19
19 20 2 22 2 PN 16 17 18 19 20 Bl 22 20 21 22 23 2 2 2
26 Bl 28 29 30 31 23PN 25 26 27 28 2 27 Bl 20 30
30 31
October November December
S M T WT F S S M T WT F S S M T WT F S
1 3 1 Bl 3 ¢+ 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5
s s 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 12 FER 14 c B 8 9 10 12
11 12 13 14 15 17 15 17 18 19 20 21 13 BV 15 16 17 18 19
18 BEN 20 21 22 23 24 2 23 u [PHEIEA 2 20 21 22 23 [PBEA 26
25 2 27 28 29 31 29 30 27 28 29 30 3l
PC MEETINGS CITY HALL CLOSED
SPECIAL MEETINGS WILL BE SCHEDULED AS NEEDED




	20251103 PC Agenda
	E1_20251020 PC Draft Minutes
	F1_835 Arbor Rd staff report
	ATT A - Draft Resolution
	Exhibit A - Project Plans
	Exhibit B - Project Description Letter
	Exhibit C - Conditions of Approval

	ATT B - Location Map
	Att C - Data Table

	G1_2026 PC Calendar staff report
	ATT A - 2026 Draft PC


